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The President’s Message 
URING this month of March this nation has 

moved swiftly in its defense program. The 

transparent film that hitherto has veiled our inten- 

tions has been cast aside, and the course we intend 

to take now stands frankly revealed. Our passive 

defense has become boldly belligerent, and whatever 

defense measures we take from now on must embitter 

those who are not favored. 
If at last our intentions have been so clearly de- 

fined, we are still being dulled by the soft words 

of those who mold our destinies. We are completely 
unaroused as to the seriousness of our undertaking. 

It seems to be but another adventure. We do not 
comprehend there can be no quick ending of this 

world-wide clash of ideologies, and that many long 

devastating years must elapse before the issue is 

decided. 
Weare presently furnishing those whom we favor 

with money, ships, planes, and food, wanting to 

believe that kind of support will decide the struggle. 

We are not yet told that these products of our abund- 
ance will be insufficient, and that those who are now 

marching into our defense camps and those who 

follow them will be marching on other shores before 

the struggle is ended. Do not be misled into fears 
that continental United States will be invaded. 

What a pity we do not realize what we are facing, 
the sacrifices we will have to make, the suffering we 

will have to undergo before we have finished our 

undertaking! What a pity we do not heed the 

lessons of Poland, Norway, France, and the Balkans, 

and what led to their swift undoing and absorption 
by a form of government we do not believe in! 

What a pity that we continue to look upon our 
defense measures as means of making profits! 

Until we change that attitude of mind and make 

sacrifices and endure suffering for the principles of 

living we believe in, we will not have done our part 

in the defense of our nation. 

The Seventy-third convention of The Institute to 

be held in Yosemite Valley, California on May 17, 

18 and 19, with the concluding dinner session at the 

Ambassador Hotel in Los Angeles on May 21 is an 

assured success. 

At this early date reservations have been made by 

architects of the east to fill the special train which 

will leave Chicago at 10 A.M. on Monday, May 12. 

The Atchison, Topeka and Santa Fe Railway offi- 
cials have assured us of modern equipment and of 

ample accommodations. It is essential to have all 

reservations in hand by April 30 at the latest. 

It will be of great assistance to those in charge of 

the arrangements, and to the Santa Fe, if members 

of The Institute and of the profession at large who 

plan to make this trip to attend the convention will 
act now by sending their reservations to the Secretary 

at The Octagon. 
Give the names of the members of your party and 

indicate the type of accommodation desired on the 
convention train, as described on page 9 of the 

January Octagon. Please keep in mind that your 

round trip railroad ticket must be purchased from 

your local railroad agent. 
A form of reservation blank was included in the 

January number of The Octagon. If you are going, 

fill it out in detail and forward to Washington. 
Additional copies are obtainable if needed. 

Epwin BErcstTrom, 
President 
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The National Technological Civil Protection Committee 

*T'HIS committee sprang into being as the result 
of conferences between the War Department 

and W. D. Binger, Civil Engineer. The Secretary 

of War agreed to appoint to this committee a mem- 

ber from all branches of engineering and archi- 

tectural practice. The committee consists of the 

following: 

H. E. Jordan, American Water Works Associa- 

tion 
J. L. Walsh, American Society of Mechanical 

Engineers 

Scott Turner, American Institute of Mining and 

Metallurgical Engineers. 

W. H. Carrier, American Society of Heating and 

Ventilating Engineers. 

Abel Wolman, American Public Health Associa- 

tion 
A. B. Ray, American Institute of Chemical Engi- 

neers 
F. G. Frost, American Institute of Architects 

E. M. Hastings, American Railway Engineering 

Association 

W. Cullen Morris, American Gas Association 

J. C. Parker, American Institute of Electrical 

Engineers 

W. D. Binger, American Society of Civil Engi- 

neers, Chairman 

This committee has now been completely organ- 

ized and has had a number of meetings. 

The National Technological Civil Protection 

Committee has adopted a set of objectives of which 

No. 1 is a direct quotation from the Secretary of 

War's statement when the Committee was created. 

1. The performance of the functions granted to the 

Committee by the Secretary of War, specifically 
as follows: 

(a) “Assist the War Department in technical mat- 

ters relating to the collection, evaluation and dis- 
semination of information of value in the protection 

of civilians and vital civilian installations in time 
of war. 

(b) “Furnish to the War Department technical 

information that the Committee deems of value to 

the War Department and to the Nation in matters 

concerning the protection of the civilian population 
from air and other attack in time of war. 

(c) “Receive from the War Department pertinent 

information of the very latest successful methods 

employed abroad to safeguard civilian communities 

against air and other attack.” 

2. The determination of the experience for carrying 

on civil life under the stress of war and the study- 

ing of facilities required by others. 

. The dissemination by the Committee to the War 

Department and to its parent organizations of 

the probable results of such experience in terms 

of American engineering practice and civil life 

and activities. 

. The orderly listing of the most important prob- 

lems still unsolved with respect to civilian protec- 

tion. 

. The selection of those problems most pressing and 

the stimulation of the machinery required for 

their solution. 

The War Department is now preparing pamph- 

lets in draft stage referring to protective construc- 

tion, chemical warfare, fire protection, etc. These 

drafts will be presented to this committee for minute 

examination and criticism. After revisions, the War 

Department will see to the publication of these 

pamphlets, which will be given wide circulation. 

They must be considered as tentative, for as better 

information is received from the War Department’s 

representatives abroad, it will be promptly reflected 

in other editions. 

Many questions which the committee has received 

have been referred to the War Department and we 

expect the answers to them very shortly. 

In order to understand the background of this 

work it is necessary to realize that until late last 

Autumn the General Staff Organization included 
nothing on civilian defense. In previous military 

operations this was not a problem except where the 

Army was operating. In October the War Depart- 

ment organized a Civil Defense Section as part of 
the General Staff’s G-3 (Plans and Operations) 

Branch. It is with them that this committee is in 
direct and constant communication. Representatives 

of General Staff’s G-3 are also present at the com- 

mittee’s sessions. 
The civil engineers are well organized for the 

reception and dissemination of information pertinent 
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to Civil Protection. The other societies represented 

on the committee are following lines similar to those 
of the civil engineers. 

President Bergstrom believes The Institute should 

use our existing machinery for this dissemination of 

material and has notified the Regional Directors that 
they would be the personnel through which such 

information concerning civilian defense would be 
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communicated to the profession. Inquiry concern- 

ing civilian defense may be made through the Re- 

gional Directors, who in turn will obtain from me 

the best answers possible. 

Freperick G. Frost, 

The National Technological Civil 

Protection Committee. 

The Education of the Modern Architect 

By DonaLp Drew EcBERT 

The following article is an interesting discussion 

of the philosophies that underlie the current teach- 

ing of architecture in our schools. See the symposium 

in the February OCTAGON. 

NY discussion of the problems of modern archi- 

tecture inevitably centers around eclecticism— 

around the contemporary use, for the first time in 

history, of an almost infinite number of old or new 

architectural styles side by side. And this eclecticism 

of architectural style is both reflected in, and abetted 

by, the present-day existence of many conflicting 

varieties of architectural education, each with its own 

vociferous supporters. While the continued survival 

of all these competing points of view certainly shows 

that each of them must answer some contemporary 

human need, each must also represent only a limited 

answer to the problems of modern architecture. For 

if any one point of view offered a sufficiently broad 

and acceptable modern standard of architecture, it 

would be able to absorb the others to form a much 
more universally accepted criterion for modern archi- 

tectural education than any that now exists. 

Before investigating the possibility of bringing 
greater order into this contemporary chaos of eclec- 

ticism, it is necessary to understand why such eclec- 

ticism ever arose. In the first place, it arose because, 

in modern times, the two historically fundamental 

methods for training the architect—the apprentice 

system and the academic system—have come into di- 

rect opposition much more than ever before. In the 

second place, this opposition has been complicated and 

intensified by the rise, since the eighteenth century, 

Note: Donald Drew Egbert is Assistant Professor, De- 
partment of Architecture, Princeton University. 

of additional conflicting points of view largely pe- 

culiar to the present age. The conflict between many 

of the ideals of the Industrial Revolution and those 
of the Romantic Movement has often been pointed 

out. For since the eighteenth century, the utilitarian 
and scientific interest in the material world of nature 
fostered by the Industrial Revolution has always con- 

trasted sharply with the very different emotional ap- 
proach to nature so characteristic of the Romantic 

Movement. Furthermore, while our industrial civili- 

zation has tended to subordinate the individual to a 

society dominated by the machine, Romanticism has 

simultaneously continued to insist on the unique im- 

portance of the individual, whether from a demo- 

cratic or a socialistic standpoint. And side by side 

with the utilitarian tendency to neglect the past in 

favor of the material gains of the present, there has 

persisted the Romantic tendency to deny the present 

and to idealize the past in a highly subjective and 

emotional way. As all these conflicting points of 
view will be found to have affected the training of 

the architect in various ways, it is not surprising that 

a chaotic eclecticism is prevalent in architectural 
education today. 

In general, the types of architectural education can 

still be divided into groups on the basis of their atti- 

tude to the traditonal methods of training. First of 
all, there are those founded primarily on the appren- 

tice system; secondly, those that are basically acad- 

emic in method; and finally, those that seek to 

combine the advantages of both of these traditional 

approaches to architectural education. Within each 
of these three groups, however, there are smaller 

groups whose methods differ considerably one from 
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another, largely because they have been variously 

affected by the conflicting modern attitudes toward 

nature, toward the individual, and toward the past, 

suggested above. 

Under the apprentice system, as the name implies, 

the would-be architect serves as an apprentice to an 

architect, a builder, or a craftsman of experience. 

For the western world this system perhaps reached 

its peak when it produced the builders of the medieval 

castles and cathedrals. The apprentice system always 

tends to stress the importance of craftsmanship— 

that is to say, of the practical handling of the medium 
of the art. Now the medium of architecture consists 

of the solids and the voids which the architect can 

organize into useful sheltered space; consequently, 

the architect trained under the apprentice system is 

much more likely to be interested in the practical 
problem of enclosing useful space, than in arriving 

at any abstract canon of formal design, or in express- 

ing some kind of content in architecture.! 

Both form and content are likely to be neglected 
under the apprentice system unless standards for 

them are imposed by a strong traditional program of 

requirements, such as that which medieval Chris- 

tianity imposed upon the mason builders of the 

Gothic cathedrals. Otherwise, as in the early medi- 
eval castles, the main interest of the craftsman 

architect is likely to be devoted to the practical use 

of materials and of the building—a primarily utili- 

tarian approach to architecture that tends to ignore 
both artistic form and artistic content. 

Until well into the nineteenth century the ap- 
prentice system remained almost the only method for 

training the architect in many countries, including 

*By the expression of content is meant merely what 

architects call “character”—i.e., the expression of the 

highest human function of a given building. Thus, if 

the building is to be a church, the architect will seek to 

express in it his interpretation of the spiritual values of 

religion in general, as well as those of the particular sect 

for which the building is erected. In a house, the uni- 

versal significance of family life will be expressed as far 

as possible in relation to the character and needs of the 

specific family, or families, that are to live there. And 

if a factory is to be architecture, and not just building, 

it will express something of the architect’s interpretation 

of the dignity of labor in general, and of the specific kind 

of labor in particular. A thoroughgoing discussion of 
medium, form, and content in architecture is contained in 

Theodore Greene’s recent book, The Arts and the Art of 
Criticism (1940). 
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England and the United States. In the United 

States, for example, the apprentice system was the 

only kind of professional architectural education 

readily available until after the Civil War, though 
since that time it has been almost completely sup- 

planted by formal academic training. Because of 

the medieval heritage of the apprentice system, it 

is not surprising that a Romanticized version of it 
was adopted in the last century by the architects of 

the Gothic Revival, and it is worth noting that such 
recent or contemporary representatives of that Re- 

vival as Bertram Goodhue (the architect of the 

Chapel at the University of Chicago and of the 

Chapel at West Point), Ralph Adams Cram (archi- 

tect of the Chapel and Graduate College at Prince- 
ton), and Charles Z. Klauder (architect of the 

“Cathedral of Learning” at the University of Pitts- 
burgh), were all products of the apprentice system. 

However, perhaps the most influential contributor 
to the survival and revival of apprentice methods 

was William Morris, the well-known and versatile 

designer, craftsman, poet, medievalist, and socialist. 

Morris, who played an important part in the work 

of the Arts and Crafts Exhibition Society which 

held its first exhibition in London in 1888, became 

the leading figure in the entire “arts and crafts” 

movement. This was largely a deliberate Romantic 
attempt to return to the principles of medieval art 

and medieval handicraft, but soon showed the in- 

fluence of the academic point of view, for those 

principles shortly began to be taught in schools. 

Furthermore, to the love for things medieval, Morris 

and the arts and crafts movement added a new 

socialistic interest in the welfare of the craftsman, 

as well as a modern practical attitude toward the 

world of nature. Thus, while the ornament which 

Morris designed for book decoration, wall-paper, 

tapestries, etc., was basically inspired by Gothic 
foliate details and, like the original Gothic ornament, 

was produced by handicraft, it imitated to a much 

greater degree the specific foliate forms, etc., of the 

natural world. This modern interest of Morris in 

the physical facts of nature was further visible in 

his desire to express directly the specific nature of 
materials by means of their functional use, as ex- 

emplified by the definite expression of wood in the 

well-known Morris chair, named after him though 

actually found before his day. While Morris was 
not himself an architect, his own house—Red House, 



March, 1941 

at Bexley Heath in Kent—was designed for him by 

his friend and associate, Philip Webb, in accord with 

his principles. This building vaguely recalls the in- 

formal picturesqueness of the medieval-revival archi- 

tecture of the time, but with a frankly functional 

expression of brick and other materials that is 

strikingly modern in its utilitarian simplicity and 

_ directness. 

The influence of Morris and the arts and crafts 
movement has persisted strongly—as for example, 

in the Wiener Werkstatte, that Viennese arts and 

crafts school which first acquired world-wide notice 

in the late nineteen-twenties. But the great im- 
portance of Morris’ point of view has resulted mainly 

from his desire to express the use of materials di- 
rectly, and also from his insistence upon the inter- 

relation of art and society, because Morris took a 

humanitarian and socialistic point of view regarding 

work and art and their significance for human happi- 

ness. Though these ideas are still “modern,” in 

some other respects Morris turned his back on mod- 

ernity. The medieval handicraft methods, which he 
advocated largely as a means of restoring the human 

dignity so largely destroyed in the nineteenth century 

by the cruel dominance of industrial machinery over 

the worker, blinded him to the potentialities of the 

machine when properly controlled in the hands of an 

artist. For the machine, employed as a sort of 

super-tool, offers extraordinarily wide possibilities 

for new kinds of artistic expression. 

These possibilities have been clearly recognized by 

Frank Lloyd Wright, who believes in a combination 

of the apprentice system with machine craft, rather 

than handicraft, and thus seeks to make artistic use 

of the practical and scientific methods introduced by 

the Industrial Revolution. It is worth noting that 

Wright himself had some education as an engineer, 

and that later his architectural training was of the 

apprentice variety, secured mostly in the office of a 

great rebel against the academic tradition, Louis 
Sullivan. At present Wright has what he terms a 

“Fellowship” of students at his home, Taliesin, 

Spring Green, Wisconsin, whom he trains as ap- 

prentices. However, instead of acquiring knowledge 

of mere handicraft, the students acquire first-hand 

understanding of modern machine-produced mate- 

rials and of the practical solution of modern archi- 
tectural problems through actual work in the field 
on Wright’s own buildings. The elements of 
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Wright’s architecture, the forms which his students 
learn, are essentially the product of modern design 

arising from the use of strictly modern materials. 

“Form,” says Wright, “is made by function but 

qualified by use.”? At the same time, he never 

fails to subordinate formal design, the intellectual 
and aesthetic part of architecture, to the imagination 

of the architect; or, as he himself puts it, “Intellect 

is the tool of the imagination.” * And Wright does 

not forget that the expression of content by means of 

architectural media and forms is the chief end of 

architecture, for one of his favorite sayings is that 

“architecture is the scientific art of making structure 
express ideas.” # 

The tremendous contemporary influence of Wright 
may undoubtedly be attributed to the fact that, in 

an age of narrow specialization, he himself has a 

broad standard of architecture, and one which gives 

due attention to all the aspects of a work of art— 

medium, form, and content—with the expression of 

content always as the chief end of architecture. Un- 

like the devotees of the arts and crafts movement 
and unlike the “Functionalists” of the so-called In- 

ternational Style, he never forgets that the archi- 

tect is more than a craftsman, more than an engineer, 

and more than just a designer; consequently he 

never fails to make use of medium and form to seek 

an expressive end. 

His great limitation, if so great an artist can be 

called limited, would seem to lie in his Romantic 

emphasis on the extreme individuality of the archi- 

tect. He constantly repeats, “Individuality is 

sacred.”5 And this confidence in the supreme im- 
portance of expressing artistic personality, a con- 

fidence that enabled him to survive years of com- 

parative neglect in his own country, has sometimes 

led him to subordinate the adequate expression of 

social use in architecture to affirmation of his own 
personality ; so that at times he has made self-expres- 

sion an end in itself, rather than only a significant 

factor in true architectural expression. 

Thus, the arts and crafts movement and the more 

truly modern point of view of Frank Lloyd Wright 

both show the influence of the apprentice system. 

*F. L. Wright, Modern Architecture (Princeton, 1931), 
front end-paper. 

* Ibid., rear end-paper. 
*Ibid., rear end-paper. 

* Ibid., rear end-paper. 
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But in sharp contrast to the effect of the apprentice 

system on architecture today has been the influence 

of the other great traditional approach to archi- 
tecture, the academic point of view.® In this, which 

is primarily Renaissance in origin though derived 

from a Roman-Classic heritage, the would-be archi- 

tect is taught abstract and more-or-less rigid prin- 

ciples of formal design as the most important part 

of architectural education, rather than the practical 

craftsmanship emphasized by the apprentice system. 

These principles are not learned so much from an 

individual master who is served as an apprentice, as 

from books, or still better, at schools or academies 

where the principles contained in all the books have 

supposedly been digested by the professors in charge. 

Thus, under the academic system the student is not 

so restricted to the style of only a single master, 

as under the apprentice system. Nevertheless, the 

traditional academic rules of design are likely to 

become ends in themselves at the expense either of 

practical and economical shelter or of the architect’s 

own creative expression of content. The academic 

architect too often becomes subordinate to rules un- 

less he is an exceedingly strong and imaginative artis- 

tic personality—a Michelangelo, for example—who 

can adapt the canons of design to his own expressive 

ends. 

Classic antiquity had always tended to rely upon 

principles of design in art, principles clearly expressed 

for us by Vitruvius, the one Roman architect whose 

writings have survived. These principles were car- 

ried further and made into a still more rigid canon 

by such authorities of the Renaissance as Alberti, 

Vignola, and Palladio. The historic fact that Al- 

berti, the first well-known architectural writer of 

the Renaissance, was a humanist of considerable 

social position and not a horny-handed craftsman 

of medieval type, set a new precedent for the social 

standing of the architect, and for the decline of the 

architect as craftsman. Since his day, architects 

have been more and more often gentlemen who only 

designed on paper the edifices which were actually 

to be erected by practical contractors and builders. 

*The word academic as here used is not intended to 

be derogatory, but mainly to suggest organized group 

training under several teachers, as opposed to the single 

master of the apprentice system. 
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The principles expounded by these Roman and 

Renaissance authors formed the basic doctrine of the 

first great architectural school still influential today 

—the French Academy School, founded under Louis 

XIV in the late seventeenth century. Like those 

authors, the Academy School combined a certain 

amount of interest in the practical and scientific 

use of materials and of space in architecture with an 

ever-increasing emphasis on formal design. Like 

them, too, it at first looked upon academic training, 

not as replacing the apprentice system, but as sup- 

plementing and culminating it. 

However, the tendency toward specialization 

which began with the Industrial Revolution had a 

pronounced effect on the academic tradition in 

France, and consequently, throughout the rest of 

the world, for gradually the school training became 

so highly specialized that it required all of a student’s 

time. Gradually, also, there began to split off from 

the Academy School various specialized educational 

units devoted to limited aspects of practical and 

scientific training, so that the parent School became 

more and more restricted in the scope of its teach- 

ing. Thus as early as 1747 the foundation of the 

Ecole des Ponts-et-Chaussées took away from the 

architect, for the first time in history, the design and 

building of bridges, highways, canals, etc., which 

were now turned over to a new kind of highly- 

trained specialist. 

In 1793 at the end of the French Revolution, the 

royal Academies were all closed. However, the 

architectural school was re-founded in 1795 under 

the direction of the Institute at Paris which replaced 

the Academies, and in 1807 was combined with the 

official schools of painting and sculpture to form 

the Ecole des Beaux-Arts as we know it today. But 

before its refounding in 1795 the architectural school 

had been shorn of still more of its former functions, 

for the Ecole Polytechnique, the first important 

modern engineering school, was established in Paris 

in 1794 and assumed most of the study of structural 

problems formerly carried on at the Old Academy 

of Architecture. And not only the field of structure, 

but even that of design was soon to become increas- 

ingly circumscribed for the architects of France, by 
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the foundation in 1829 of the Ecole des Arts-et- 

Métiers, which removed from the hands of the archi- 

tects those works that are today included under the 

name of “industrial design,” and gave them over to 

yet another kind of specialist. 

As a result of the founding of such new and spe- 

cialized schools as these, the French academic tra- 

dition of the eighteenth and nineteenth centuries was 

able to continue only a comparatively small part of 

the functions and traditions of the original royal 

Academy School. The Ecole des Beaux-Arts re- 

tained and increasingly emphasized the old prin- 
ciple that the architect must always design his 

building with direct reference to the specific archi- 

tectural program, or practical list of activities to 

be housed in the particular building. However, it 

also inherited the Louis XIV tradition that formal 

architectural composition must always be in accord 
with a rigid canon of Classic and Renaissance ma- 

sonry forms—a canon which was to result in an 

inevitable decline in the influence of the French 

official tradition when the modern materials of steel 

and concrete began at last to receive architectural 

expression particularly in the years after the World 

War. 

Despite the comparatively narrow limits of its 

French academic heritage, the Beaux-Arts did adopt 

enough of the utilitarian point of view of the nine- 

teenth century to give additional importance to the 

practical use of enclosed space, while still seeking to 
make that space artistically expressive of the specific 

social purpose of the given building. The fact that 

the Ecole des Beaux-Arts thus developed for itself 
much additional practical convenience in planning, 

was sufficient to enable it to maintain the dominant 

place in architectural education throughout the prac- 

tical-minded nineteenth century, despite its own com- 

parative lack of interest in the use of new materials 

and new methods of construction. 

Nearly all American schools today, as well as 

many of them elsewhere, show clearly the influence 
of the Ecole des Beaux-Arts. The period of its 

greatest dominance in the United States lasted from 

about the end of the Civil War until shortly after 
the World War. Richard Morris Hunt and Henry 

Hobson Richardson, the first Americans known to 

have studied at the Ecole, were students there shortly 

before, and during, the Civil War, and in the years 
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immediately following they both achieved very 
large practices. During the same period the first 

architectural schools were founded in the United 
States and were based directly on the precedents 
offered by the Ecole des Beaux-Arts itself. The 

earliest of these was the architectural school at the 

Massachusetts Institute of Technology, a school 
established in 1865 with a French graduate of the 

Beaux-Arts to help teach architectural design. After 
M. I. T., additional schools of architecture and of 

fine arts more or less modelled on the Ecole des 
Beaux-Arts, were rapidly founded. The first Ameri- 

can university to open a separate school of fine arts 
was Yale, in 1869. Meanwhile, in 1868 profes- 

sional courses in architecture had already been es- 
tablished at the University of Illinois, shortly fol- 

lowed by those at Cornell in 1871, Syracuse in 1873, 

and Columbia in 1881. During the decade after 

1890 the schools of the University of Pennsylvania, 
Pennsylvania State College, George Washington 
University, Tulane, Harvard, Armour Institute, 

Notre Dame, and Ohio State University were all 

founded, and at present there are more than fifty 

institutions in this country giving professional archi- 

tectural courses. 

The great influence of the Ecole des Beaux-Arts on 

American ideals of architectural education can be 

attributed to the fact that it offered a definite stand- 
ard for architecture at a time when standards were 

almost non-existent. And in a period when artistic 

standards tended to be engulfed by mere utility, the 

schools under the influence of the Ecole des Beaux- 

Arts never failed to maintain that architecture is an 
art. 

However, the firm traditionalism which was the 

strength of the Beaux-Arts system was also its 
weakness. Not only were new materials and new 

programs still largely sacrificed to maintaining the 
increasingly outmoded Louis XIV traditions of 
Masonry design, but ever-growing emphasis was 
placed on the architectural drawing as an end in 
itself, rather than as a means to the end of erecting 

a building. That architectural drawing has a 
practical purpose tended to be forgotten in the process 

of making elaborately pretty pictures, with ever- 

widening divergence from the realities of actual 
building. Furthermore, the rigidity of the Beaux- 
Arts canon, which often tends to promulgate rules 
of design at the expense of the individuality of the 



10 THE OCTAGON 

architect, became increasingly irksome in an age of 
individual specialization and Romantic self-expres- 

sion. And finally, the circumscribed Classic-Renais- 
sance tradition of the Ecole des Beaux-Arts pre- 

vented it from taking advantage of modern historical 
knowledge of the non-Classic past. For at the Ecole, 

study of architecture other than the Classic was in- 

cluded only incidentally as part of that general cul- 

tural training of the architect insisted on by Vitruvius 

and his Renaissance followers. 

Because the Ecole failed to encourage much use 
of modern materials and of the forms that derive 

from them, its influence has tremendously decreased 

since the World War, a decrease that closely par- 

allels the development of reinforced concrete, steel, 

and plate glass as favorite modern architectural ma- 
terials. More and more of its leadership in archi- 

tectural education has been lost to certain schools 
which are trying to reintegrate architecture into a 

really modern style. These new schools, of which 
the most influential has been the Bauhaus, seek to 

make use of modern media to achieve modern forms, 

and at the same time, to combine the advantages of 
the apprentice system with the school method of 
training. 

The Bauhaus was founded by Walter Gropius at 

Weimar, Germany, in 1919 and moved to Dessau 

in 1925. It rapidly increased in fame and influence 

until the advent of the National Socialist party to 

power, when the ideas of the Bauhaus were pro- 

scribed as degenerate or Bolshevistic. Gropius had 

been a member of the Deutsche Werkbund, an as- 

sociation founded in 1907 in an effort to achieve 

a synthesis of the arts and crafts movement and 

machine production by means of effecting coopera- 

tion between artists and craftsmen on the one hand 

and industry on the other. “Let us,” said Gropius 

in the first proclamation of the Weimar Bauhaus, 

“create a new guild of craftsmen.”* At the Bau- 

haus the apprentice was to be taught not only handi- 
craft, as in the arts and crafts schools, but machine- 

craft as well, for as Gropius clearly stated, “the 
Bauhaus believes the machine to be our modern 

medium of design and seeks to come to terms with 

it.”® Like Frank Lloyd Wright, Gropius placed 

* Bauhaus, 1919-1928. 
New York, 1938), p. 18. 

* Ibid., p. 27. 

(The Museum of Modern Art, 
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emphasis on machine design, but unlike Wright, he 

also gave direct importance to training in handicraft 

as a foundation from which the most promising 
students alone proceed to the study of architecture. 

In its modern version of the apprentice system, the 

Bauhaus stressed the practical and scientific treat- 

ment of both materials and space in architecture 

and hence was very definitely “Functionalistic” in 
its approach to architecture. “We want,” said 

Gropius, “to create ... an architecture whose 

function is clearly recognizable in the relation of 

its forms.” ® Thus, somewhat like the Ecole des 

Beaux-Arts, the Bauhaus always started from a very 

specific program of functional requirements for each 
particular building, but in solving the given program 

the Bauhas has not been restricted, as has the Beaux- 

Arts, to a narrow canon of traditional academic 

forms. 

Nevertheless, design at the Bauhaus was not based 
on function alone. A new kind of formal composi- 

tion, though very different from the Renaissance 

version predominant at the Ecole des Beaux-Arts, 

grew out of that particular kind of formal design 

which in painting and sculpture is known as Cubism. 
The Bauhaus was led to Cubism partly by its love 

for simple forms inherited from the arts and crafts 

movement of William Morris and partly by the di- 
rect influence of the Dutch Cubist painter, Van 

Doesburg, who came to Weimar in 1922 and spent 

some time there. A further tendency toward Cubism 
resulted from the favorite architectural material of 

the Bauhaus, reinforced concrete, which, because of 

its poured and cast nature, is most easily treated in 
simplified cubistic shapes. 

As the Bauhaus fell more and more under the 

influence of Cubism, a cubistic tradition of formal 
design was set up which tended to produce a new 

kind of traditional academicism of its own. Though 

Gropius himself has sought to deny this fact, never- 
theless the catalogue which he helped edit for the 

Bauhaus exhibition in 1938 at the Museum of Mod- 
ern Art in New York, mentions “the genuine unity 
of form which all Bauhaus products achieved in 

later years.” 1° And in the same catalogue Gropius’ 
former assistant, Joseph Albers—who now teaches 

at Black Mountain College in North Carolina— 

* Ibid., p. 29. 
* Ibid., p. 42. 
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refers quite academically to the “basic laws of 

form.” 14 

During the last few years since the closing of the 
Bauhaus by the Nazi government, the chief protagon- 

ists of its principles have exerted widespread in- 

fluence, particularly in the United States. Gropius 

himself, who had withdrawn from the Bauhaus in 

1928 to return to private practice, was appointed 

Senior Professor of Architecture at Harvard Uni- 

versity in 1937. 

The Bauhaus group of architects and designers 

has grown increasingly influential outside of Ger- 

many because it offers not only a standard of archi- 

tecture which combines many of the advantages of 

the apprentice system with those of the academic 

approach to architecture, but a modern standard as 
well—one that uses modern materials in modern 

practical and scientific ways for the solution of mod- 

ern programs. However, in spite of its many con- 

tributions to modern architecture, the work of the 

Bauhaus is not without its limitations. The tendency 
of the group to deny the validity of traditional mate- 

rials and forms has often resulted in a self-conscious 

straining after novelty. By restricting themselves 

very often to the newly-developed structural mate- 

rials of steel and reinforced concrete, the architects 

of the group have frequently narrowed their archi- 

tectural range, a limitation further increased by 

their adherence to the baldly geometrical shapes of 

Cubism. While all architecture is, of course, based 

more-or-less on geometrically abstract forms, the 

Bauhaus group tends to use the stripped forms of 

Cubism for their own sake, rather than as a means 

to the real end of architectural expression. 

Thus, in sharp contrast to the extremely personal 

style which, in the architecture of Frank Lloyd 

Wright, controls both medium and design, the 

Bauhaus, in practice if not in theory, frequently goes 

to the other extreme of subordinating the personal 

interpretation of the architect to mere structure, mere 

utility, and mere cubistic form. The result is that 

buildings designed on Bauhaus principles often seem 

very much alike, even when built for entirely dif- 

ferent purposes by different architects. Hence it is 

not surprising that the buildings produced by the 

Bauhaus group are usually typical examples of the 

kind of architecture which is often known as the 

* Ibid., p. 118. 
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International Style, a term which itself implies that 

the architecture lacks individual, regional, and na- 

tional character, and that the personality of the 

architect, the mode of life and the personality of 

his client or clients, and the geographical zone in 

which the building is to be built, have probably not 

been taken into adequate artistic account. 

It becomes clear, then, that each of the chief con- 

temporary influences in architectural education—the 

apprentice system, the arts and crafts movement, 

Frank Lloyd Wright, the Ecole des Beaux-Arts, 

the Bauhaus and the International Style—has made 

its own special contributions toward the formation 

of a new, but as yet unrealized modern style. At the 

same time, however, it is evident that each possesses 

its own specific limitations. The one limitation that 
all of them have in common is their failure to make 

significant use of modern knowledge of the history 

and tradition of past architecture, whether as a 
storehouse of the experience of the race or as a 

spur to the imagination of the architect for achiev- 
ing a broadly acceptable modern style. 

On the one hand, the more progressive architects 

such as those of the Bauhaus group, while rightly 
scorning that other contemporary tendency to copy 

the buildings and styles of the past, have them- 

selves tended to deny the past. They have sought 

to deal with present-day architectural problems in 

vacuo, forgetting that the solution of any architec- 

tural problem, however modern, must inevitably 

show considerable indebtedness to previous solu- 
tions of similar problems and to previous treatments 

of similar materials and compositional forms. In 

failing to consider carefully the suggestive contribu- 

tions which these already existing solutions can offer 

to the architect today, they have merely limited 
their architectural vocabularies. 

The less progressive architects today, on the other 
hand, do make some use of the past. Many of the 

more individualistic and Romantically-minded archi- 

tects range freely through the monuments of archi- 

tectural history, using for their own whatever may 

strike their individual fancies. But the fundamental 

nature of architecture as a social art, and one that 

that should therefore express the life of its own 

particular age, is implicitly denied in the imitative 

and subjective work of such men. As for the acad- 

emically-trained architects, it has been pointed out 

that too often they tend to neglect the past out- 



12 THE OCTAGON 

side of their own narrow version of the Classic and 

Renaissance tradition, so that their use of the past 

is at best a limited one. 
It is true that most of the schools under the in- 

fluence of the Ecole des Beaux-Arts do have some 

courses in the history of architecture as part of the 

tradition, inherited from Vitruvius and from the 

Renaissance, that the architect must be a man of 

liberal education. However, little real importance 

is attached to these courses, and actually the train- 

ing in architectural design follows the limited prin- 

ciples of the French academic tradition, so that 

the lessons that could be learned from the remainder 

of historic architecture are neglected. This is true 

even in those schools which have unusually close 

connections with college or university departments 

of art history, such as the architectural school at 

Princeton, for example, which originated as an off- 
shoot from a department of the history of art. For 

these schools, too, have been under strong influence 

from the Ecole des Beaux-Arts and are only begin- 

ning to take some advantage of the training in the 

history and evolution of architecture so easily avail- 

able to them, even though a more fundamental 

synthesis of the academic approach with the historical 

approach would offer new advantages of its own. 

For in such a synthesis the emphasis placed on the 

importance of general principles of design for signifi- 
cant architectural expression could continue some- 

what in the manner of the Ecole des Beaux-Arts, 

but much broader principles could be arrived at 

through careful study of the historic prototypes from 

which even the most modern architectural problems 
have in some degree evolved. 

Certainly this sort of coordination of different 
contemporary approaches to architecture seems to 

offer possibilities for the future. The growing suc- 

cess of such differing methods for architectural edu- 

cation as those of Frank Lloyd Wright and of the 

Bauhaus, for example, clearly suggests that the most 

successful kinds of architectural training today are 

those that attempt at least a partial integration of 
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various modern points of view. And the fact that 

these partial syntheses have already become so in- 

fluential in spite of their own limitations, further 

suggests that in a still more complete syntheses lie 

greater possibilities for achieving a truly modern 

architecture. 

In such a synthesis, for example, the insistence 

of the Functionalist that the modern architect must 

be able to make practical use of modern materials 

and scientific methods might be combined with the 

academic point of view that architecture is an art 

as well as a craft and science. To these elements 

there might be added something of the Romantic 

glorification of the creative imagination of the in- 

dividual architect, but given more social expression 

through emphasis on the importance of general prin- 

ciples derived from the past experience of the hu- 

man race. And today our scientific knowledge of 

the historic evolution of architecture can enable us 

to achieve modern principles of much more universal 
validity than those of any previous age. 

While it certainly would be undesirable to seek 
to arrive at any academically rigid combination of 

these different points of view, nevertheless there 

already exist indications that in some relative mean 

between all these extreme and specialized approaches 

to contemporary architecture—a mean which takes 
them all into account—lies the hope for a really 

modern architectural education. Undoubtedly, in 

the search for it, results must be slow and hybrid 

at first. Progress toward a greater unity can only 

be achieved by long trial and error, because the 

process of coordinating the complex elements which, 

uncoordinated, have produced eclecticism, is neces- 

sarily a difficult one. Yet in this way all the signifi- 

cant and unavoidable points of view of our own day, 

the very ones which have given rise to eclecticism it- 

self, can be put to use in resolving the immense dis- 

order of eclecticism into an organic and expressive 

modern style and into a thoroughly modern system 

of architectural education. 
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Annual Meeting of the Association of 

Collegiate Schools of Architecture 

HE annual meeting of the Association of Col- 
legiate Schools of Architecture has been sched- 

uled for Chicago, May 10 and 11. The executive 

committee of the Association will meet May 9. 

The convention headquarters will be at the Stevens 

Hotel. Delegates and visitors to the Association 
meetings are urged to make their hotel reservations 
at an early date. 

The A.I.A. Convention Special train will leave 

Chicago May 12. This will permit those attending 

the Association meetings to continue with The 
Institute convention delegates to the A.I.A. Con- 

vention in Yosemite Valley. 

In order to assure train accommodations for those 

wishing to leave Chicago on the A.I.A. Convention 

Special, reservations should be made at once with 

Charles T. Ingham, Secretary, A.I.A., 1741 New 

York Avenue, Washington, D. C. 

Pau WEIGEL, Secretary 

A Communication from the Society of Greek Professional Architects 
To THE ARCHITECTS OF ALL FREE NATIONS, 

Honorep COLLEAGUES: 

The situation in which Greece finds herself 

prompts us to address to you, the creators of the 

beautiful and the true, these lines, expressing the 

sentiments of your colleagues who live and build 
on the classic soil of Greece. 

The liberty of thought which reigned in the Re- 

public of Athens was the most propitious atmosphere 
in antiquity for the florescence and evolution of 

the arts and sciences, and most particularly of archi- 

tecture, which attained its highest perfection in 

Greece. The King and the government of our 
country, having these attainments in mind, jealously 
defended our peace and our liberty, which they 

fostered for the progress and the well-being of the 

fatherland. 

Under these conditions we lived in peace, going 

about our daily business, when, suddenly, by brutal 

aggression a treacherous tyrant attempted to crush 

our nation and deprive its people of their liberty, 
that cherished liberty restored to us through the un- 

daunted struggle and heroic sacrifices of our fore- 

fathers. 

It is, then, in the defense of Liberty, sole Pro- 

tectress of the products of human thought, that we 
have taken up arms. 

Fortunately, the consciousness of being in the 

right increases the power of the weak, and thus 

Greece, with its 9,000,000 inhabitants, gained the 

initiative soon after the outbreak of the war, against 
an adversary of upwards of 45,000,000 people. 

In spite of our successes, however, we do not con- 

sider it unnecessary, honored Colleagues, to lay 
before you our protest against this unjust attack; 

and at the same time we ask you, in the name of 

Liberty, to champion our cause, in your intimate 

circles as well as with your professional colleagues, 

in the full knowledge that our struggle is only to 
preserve our independence. 

Feeling certain that you will raise your voices in 
support of the liberty of a small nation, we address 

to you, honored Colleagues, our most distinguished 

salutations. 

ANDREW KRriIEZIs, 

Vice President. 

JoHN ANTONIADES, 

Secretary. 

Scholarships 
nounces the tenth annual consideration of candidates 

for the Kate Neal Kinley Memorial Fellowship. 
The Fellowship yields the sum of one thousand 

The Kate Neal Kinley Memorial Fellowship—i941-1942. 

By authority of the Board of Trustees of the 
University of Illinois the Committee in charge an- 
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dollars which is to be used by the recipient toward 

defraying the expenses of a year’s advanced study 

of the Fine Arts in America or abroad. 

Requests for application blanks should be ad- 

dressed to Dean Rexford Newcomb, College of 
Fine and Applied Arts, University of Illinois, Ur- 

bana, Illinois, not later than May 15. 

Massachusetts Institute of Technology. 

A scholarship of six hundred dollars is offered 

in the academic year 1941-42 for a special student 

in the fourth or the fifth year of the course in Archi- 
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tecture at the Massachusetts Institute of Technology. 

This will be awarded as the result of a competition 

in design under the direction of the Committee on 

Design of the School of Architecture. 

The competition is open to citizens of the United 

States of good character, who are between twenty- 

one and twenty-eight years of age, and who have 

had at least three years of office experience. 

The competition will be held May 3-12. 

For information address Dean Walter R. Mac- 

Cornack, 77 Massachusetts Avenue, Cambridge, 
Massachusetts. 

Members Elected, Effective March 7, 1941 
Chapter and Name 

Sr. Louts 

Roy O. Chaffee 
William Arnold Grolock 

Chapter and Name Chapter and Name Chapter and Name 

ALBANY 

Turpin Chambers 

Bannister 

NorTH CAROLINA 

Roger Carolton McCarl 

NortH Texas 

CENTRAL New York 

Leo Edward Considine 

CHICAGO 

Richard James Barr, Jr. 

Harford Field 

Noel Leslie Flint 

Boston 

Gustav Adolf Hagen 

BUFFALO 

Charles Irwin Thiele 

CENTRAL ILLINOIS Darton 

Carl Eduard Bretscher os - —— 

Philip Trutter arry I. Schenc 

Ellasson Smith 
CENTRAL TEXAS 

Harold Everett Jessen 

Charles Augustus 

Millhouse 

Detroir 

Roger Bailey 

Louis Rossetti 

PITTSBURGH 

Cc. O. Chromaster Paul Opher Klingensmith 

NORTHWESTERN PENNA. 
SouTrH TEXAS Edward Stuart Phillips 

Clarence Alfred Johnson Joseph Anton Schmid 

OKLAHOMA 

Wasuincron, D. C. 

Marion Leroy Bagley 
Dan Kirkhuff 

Herschel Elarth 

Edwin Howard, Jr. 

Marshall Gardner 
Lindsay 

Kenneth Howard Saylor 

WASHINGTON STATE 

Lester P. Fey 

Summer Program in City and Regional Planning 
The School of Architecture of the Massachusetts 

Institute of Technology and the American Planning 

and Civic Association are again sponsoring a short 

summer course in City and Regional Planning. The 
course is arranged to meet the requirements of stu- 

dents and teachers of planning or related professions, 

technicians in practice and members of planning 
boards or housing authorities. The following are 

details of courses to be offered this summer: 

The Program will be divided into four sections 

as follows: City and Regional Planning, Planning 

Legislation, Planning Administration, and Tech- 

niques of Planning. Each section will consist of a 

series of lectures and discussions, arranged in such a 
way that those wishing to participate may register 

in one or more without duplication of subject matter 

or loss of continuity. The seminars will cover such 

subjects as, zoning, subdivision control, traffic prob- 

lems, master plans for communities and regions, 

housing, recreation, roadside improvement, the 

powers and duties of planning and zoning agencies. 

Recognition will be given to the new demands made 
on the planning profession by the requirements of 

the Defense Program. Opportunities will be pro- 

vided for the study of design or research problems 
under supervision. 

Applications for participation in the Program 

should be sent to Professor Frederick J. Adams, 

M. I. T. School of Architecture, Cambridge, Mass., 
not later than July 1, 1941. 



March, 1941 A JOURNAL OF THE A. lI. A. 

A Correction 

FEBRUARY NUMBER OF THE OCTAGON, PAGE 18 

N that page appears the statement of Professor 

Weigel, Head of the Department of Archi- 

tecture of the Kansas State College, concerning the 

philosophy of teaching which governs the architec- 

tural school of that College. 

In printing the February OcTacoN—in the transi- 

tion from galley proof to page proof—two lines were 

omitted from the statement at the beginning of the 

second paragraph. The resulting break in continuity 

is self-evident. Those who keep a permanent file of 
THE OcTAGOoN are requested to make a correction 

by inserting the following words at the beginning 

of the second paragraph. 

“He will learn to face realities; develop a consci- 

ousness of contemporary social and economic. . .” 

The corrected paragraph will then read in full 

as follows: 
“He will learn to face realities; develop a consci- 

ousness of contemporary social and economic 

needs; become acquainted with materials, old and 

new, and with their uses; develop a sense ot 

structure; and eagerly acquire a ready facility to 

express his thoughts graphically.” 

The surplus and file copies of THE OcTacon 

have been corrected. It is requested that the above 

be used as an erratum slip for all outstanding copies. 

With the Chapters 
News Notes FROM CHAPTER SECRETARIES 

Buffalo. 

A combination dinner and meeting was held in 

the University Club on February 25. It was well 
attended and lively discussion took place on pub- 

licity, legislation and defense programs. Guest 

speakers were Mr. Redmond and Mr. Sturges, presi- 

dent and secretary, respectively, of the Building 
Trades Council, who appealed for better cooperation 

between labor, contractors and architects to result 

in better, more efficient and economical construction. 

The Buffalo Chapter is to appoint two members to 

meet with representatives of the above group to 

formulate a program to aid in the defense program 

and set up a post-war program. 

A. H. Hopkins was appointed chairman of the 
newly founded Architects’ Committee on Civilian 

Defense of Buffalo and Western New York with 
P. Harbach, M. A. Wolfe, M. J. Murphy, and 

W. A. Cannon acting with him. The group will 

study proposed civilian and workers air-raid shelter 

housing to meet increased national defense demand 

and camouflaging of industrial plants. 

Chairman Kideney of the Legislative Committee 

is doing a fine job and presented a resume of bills 
now before the State Assembly affecting the welfare 
of the profession. 

Chairman Harbach is preparing a program of pub- 
licity for the year and contemplated raido programs 

to explain the need for professional services. An 
active year is in store for the chapter. 

Georce Dick Situ, Jr., Secretary 

New York. 

The Hon. Fiorello H. LaGuardia, Mayor of the 

City of New York, was the guest of honor of the 
New York Chapter on February 25, when the 

Chapter celebrated the 84th Anniversary of its 

founding. Dinner at the Architectural League, pre- 

ceded by a reception was attended by 130 members 

and friends. The occasion for the Mayor’s presence 

was his induction into Honorary Associate Member- 

ship in the Chapter. William Adams Delano, 

F.A.1.A., cited the Mayor as “architect of the 

City’s destinies.” Mr. LaGuardia, thanking his 

“fellow architects,” said that in contrast to the many 
honors given him as chief executive of the city, he 
considered this one as peculiarly and personally his 

own, from “those who create to one who wants to 

create.” A certificate of membership was presented 

to him by Chapter President Frost. 

Clarence S. Stein, F.A.1.A., and former chair- 

man of the New York State Commission on Housing 
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and Planning, was awarded the Chapter’s Medal of 
Honor, for his contribution to the field of low-cost 

housing. Philip L. Goodwin, F.A.I.A., member of 
the Medal Jury, cited the profound studies carried 

on by Mr. Stein over the past 20 years, of the 

sociological as well as architectural aspects of hous- 
ing as a valuable and influential contribution to this 

important civic problem. This medal is given by 
the Chapter for distinguished work and high pro- 

fessional standing. 

The U. S. Architects’ Fund for R.I.B.A., initi- 

ated by the Chapter, reports receipts at this writing 

of $1,779.00. The committee had hoped, perhaps 

optimistically, to be able to report a much larger 

amount by now. The worthiness of the cause needs 

no stressing, and contributions are of course allow- 

able tax deductions. Donations of from $1 to $5 
or more were invited, and the great majority of 

contributions so far have been for $1 and $2. Ex- 

penses of the Fund have been kept at a minimum and 

are being absorbed by the members of the commit- 

tee in order that the entire amount collected may 

be sent to our British colleagues and their families. 

Thus the usual practice of sending out letters of 
acknowledgement has been abandoned. The commit- 

tee would like to express, through the pages of THE 

OctTAacon, its acknowledgement of all amounts re- 
ceived, and particularly its appreciation for the co- 

operation of the State Associations and the other 
Chapters, and the many kind letters of approval 

and encouragement which have come from all parts 

of the country. The Fund will close in a few weeks. 

FREDERICK J. WoopsripcE, Secretary 

Southern California. 

The dinner meeting at the Clark Hotel on Feb- 

ruary 11 was a lively gathering and well attended. 

George Meredith, who has spoken to us before, 

brought a clear and interesting picture of “Public 

Relations.” He defined the subject in a manner 
that made it understandable and human. The tre- 

mendous possibilities of a broad, well planned pro- 
gram and the opportunities open to the profession 

were cited. Public Relations is the aristocrat of 

the publicity family and is concerned with policies, 
ideas and trends. It is the planning of a program 
and employs the radio, press, and the other members 
of the publicity family to carry out the ideas it has 

hatched. 
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Allan Herrick, advertising director of the Secur- 
ity-First National Bank and his assistant Mr. George 

Knight were guests of the Chapter. They were 
thanked for their efforts to publicize the Architect 

in the booklet on homes, soon to be published by the 

Bank. Mr. Herrick told of the bankers’ decision 
to improve the public’s opinion of the banker through 

a public relations program. Incidentally they em- 
barked on this radical course some twenty-five years 

ago. 
Dean Arthur C. Weatherhead, of U.S.C. Archi- 

tectural School, introduced his guest, Dr. Kauf- 

mann of Vienna. Dr. Kaufmann is a noted Euro- 

pean Architect and scholar who has studied and 
written much on the development of Architecture 

from the time of the French Revolution to Cor- 

bussier. He addressed the meeting briefly and gave 

a bird’s eye view of this period of growth. Dr. 

Kaufmann is now lecturing and teaching in this 
country. 

Dona p B. Kirsy, Secretary 

Washington, D. C. 

At the February meeting the Chapter was happy 
to welcome our colleague from the main stem, Bill 

Lescaze, who tore a steak with us and then tendered 

(he should have done that to the steak, growled Tom 

Locraft, an old growler) an address on “Architec- 

ture by Architects, for a Change”. Working up a 
lather on this give-Manhattan-back-to-the-Indians 

theme, Mr. Lescaze suggested the creation of a 

“Federal department of Architecture” to supplant 

the many and conflicting agencies now engaged in 

the building work of the national government. That 

is the way to speed up defense construction, says Mr. 

Lescaze. 
The Chapter is proud to report on the success of 

a Defense Housing Exhibit prepared by a group of 
associate members under the leadership of Lewis E. 

Stevens. Shown for the first time at a luncheon 
arranged by the Central Housing Committee, the 

exhibit was praised by Defense Housing Co-ordinator 

Charles Palmer, and it will travel under the spon- 
sorship of Mr. Palmer’s division. Requests for the 

loan of the exhibit have been coming in from all parts 

of the country. Photographs of it were printed in 

the February Pencil Points and a limited number of 
reprints are available on request. 

Juutan E. Berra, Secretary 
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White Pillars. 

By J. Frazer Smith, A.I.A. 

William Helburn, Inc., 15 East 55th Street, 

New York, N. Y.—$6.00 

W hite Pillars is the story of early life and archi- 

tecture of the Old South (the lower Mississippi 
Valley country) written and illustrated by J. Frazer 

Smith, A.I.A. of Memphis, and with foreword by 
Leicester B. Holland, F.A.I.A., Chief of Fine Arts, 

Library of Congress. 

This books is especially recommended for those 
who are interested in the early domestic architecture 

and other art culture of our American civilization. 

This is the first time that the domestic architectural 
development of the Far South has been fully an- 
alyzed, classified and published for either profes- 
sional or public interest. 

* *# # # 

Contrary to most books on architecture, White 
Pillars is written for the public. It attempts to dis- 

prove the popular conception that architecture is a 
technical conglomeration of mysterious rules and 

historic styles interpreted only by skilled practi- 

tioners. On the contrary, it seeks to show that 

architecture is the natural result of a sincere people 

striving to create shelter out of the materials at 
hand for the sole purpose of getting the most out 

of living. 

The book is 8%” x 11’, approximately 300 

pages. Contains 107 illustrations—80 of which are 
full page. 

(From a Prospectus) 

The Curse of Modern Taxation. 

By W. R. B. Willcox, F.A.1.A. 

Fortuny’s Publishers, Inc., 87 Fifth Ave., 

New York, N. Y.—$2.00 

Taxes, like death, have so long been considered 

inevitable, that any challenge of this force is indeed 
startling. With our financial structure burdened 

to the point of collapse by traditional, orthodox 

economics, and with conflicting doctrines and con- 
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fused theories obscuring the future horizon, The 
Curse of Modern Taxation, by W. R. B. Willcox 

irradiates the economic heavens with the piercing 

rays of keen inquiry and logical, forceful thought. 

Praised by the American Institute for Economic 

Research as a contribution to the “further clarifi- 
cation of the subject,” Mr. Willcox protests 

“against what seems to be a settled policy of those 
who direct and influence the affairs of government.” 

Is taxation a financial necessity or merely a habit 

of thought? What could replace it? Which of our 

existing taxes is the most vicious? Which wage 
group does taxation hit hardest? The Curse of 

Modern Taxation answers these and many more 
vital questions, based on careful research and pene- 

trating analysis. 
Every sentence is an investigation into the causes 

of our economic ills. Every paragraph is a stimu- 

lating and thought-provoking protest against mod- 
ern methods of taxation. Mr. Willcox’s treatise 

will give you a broad, intelligent conception of the 
causes and solution of one of our most widespread 
economic blights—the blight of modern taxation. 

(From a Prospectus) 

Defense Housing in Our Town. 

The Twentieth Century Fund—330 W. 42nd St., 
New York, N. Y. 

This pamphlet was developed by The Twentieth 

Century Fund to set forth the community’s prob- 

lem in providing homes for workers in defense in- 

dustries, and touches on repair and modernization 

programs, observation of rent levels, transportation 

facilities, the part to be played by private individuals, 

where the money will come from, Government 
participation, etc. 

The cost of the pamphlet has been purposely kept 
very low so that individuals, as well as organizations, 

can distribute it freely. 

The rates for the bulletin are 2c each in quantities 

up to 500, and 1%4c each in quantities over 500. 

Address inquiries and orders direct to The Twen- 

tieth Century Fund. 
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NEW HAMPSHIRE SOCIETY OF prof Tone 1940 
President : Eric T. Huddleston, University of New Hampshire, Dur- 

ham, N. 
Secretary: Harry G. Forrest, 20 Pleasant Street, Concord, N. H. 

THE NORTH CAROLINA ASSOCIATION OF ARCHITECTS 1940 
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